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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 

Oracle PeopleSoft Financials Advisory and Implementation Services 
for the Statewide Financial System (SFS) 

 
RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS 11/27/2019 

 
 

The official responses to questions submitted pursuant to Section 3.4 of the above-
captioned Request for Proposals (RFP) are listed below. Responses are in bold blue 
type. 
 
1. Could we have a Word copy of the proposal as we have many forms to fill out and 

this make it easier and neater for us to fill out all the forms.  
 

Response: We have published Word versions of Appendix C, D, and E on the 
website at http://www.sfs.ny.gov/index.php/sfs-procurement. 
 
 

2. What are the qualifications of getting on the approved vendor list for the State of 
New York.  (i.e. General Services Administration vendor list requirement)  (RFP 
Section 2) 

 
Response: Please refer to the Guide for Doing Business with NYS.  This 
document can be found here: https://www.nyscr.ny.gov/doingBusiness.cfm. The 
minimum qualifications for this RFP procurement are detailed in Section 2 of 
the RFP, Minimum Firm Qualifications to Propose (Pass/Fail).  All bidders 
must demonstrate in their proposal on the form provided in Appendix D how 
their firms meet those minimum firm qualifications.   

 
3. How many PeopleSoft installs are there in the SFS System?  Are there additional 

PeopleSoft installs in other state agencies that should be considered as part of this 
RFP?  (RFP Section 1.1) 

 
Response: SFS maintains and operates a single production PeopleSoft 
system for the State. There are no PeopleSoft installs in other state agencies 
that are part of this RFP. This RFP does outline the need for advisory services 
that could result in recommendations for enhanced functionality use within 
the products listed on Exhibit 1 or in addition to those products. 

 
4. What is SFS’s desired onsite vs. remote schedule on potential projects?  (RFP 

Section 1.2) 
 

http://www.sfs.ny.gov/index.php/sfs-procurement
http://www.sfs.ny.gov/index.php/sfs-procurement
https://www.nyscr.ny.gov/doingBusiness.cfm
https://www.nyscr.ny.gov/doingBusiness.cfm
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Response: SFS requires the work under this contract to be performed on-site.  
Occasional off-site work may be allowed on an exception basis, but must be 
approved by SFS Executive Leadership. 

 
5. How many FTE is SFS able to dedicate to System projects? What is the breakdown 

of functional vs. technical team members that can be dedicated to various projects?  
(RFP Section 1.1) 

 
Response: SFS will determine their staffing needs based on each statement of 
work. 

 
6. What are the perceived Disconnects/Current State inefficiencies among Business 

Process Owners (module by module)?  (RFP Section 1.1) 
 

Response: As part of any projects undertaken pursuant to this resulting 
contract, SFS will work collaboratively with the consultant’s project team to 
define any perceived disconnects/current state inefficiencies for the modules 
involved. 
 

7. Do training materials exist?  If so, what format?  Are they current?  Is there an 
evergreen strategy to keep them current?  (RFP Section 1.1) 

 
Response: Yes, SFS has several training resources that support users of the 
system.  Many of those resources are developed using Oracle’s User 
Productivity Kit (UPK).  Yes, there is an evergreen strategy in place to keep 
them current, and those resources are updated continuously as aspects of the 
system are changed/enhanced. 

 
8. What is your current PeopleSoft Continuous Delivery Strategy?  (RFP Section 1.1) 
 

Response: SFS has a disciplined and defined PeopleSoft Continuous Delivery 
Strategy that ensures the system is maintained at current levels. See Exhibit 1 
of the RFP.  

 
9. Are you open to changing your business processes to meet PeopleSoft delivered/out 

of the box functionality?   (RFP Section 1.2) 
 

Response: SFS considers the best practice use of PeopleSoft in every project 
it undertakes.  In each project, consideration is given to the PeopleSoft 
delivered functionality along with business process requirements to determine 
whether some level of customization is warranted. 

 
10. Are there any organization target/goal metrics for the removal of customizations? If 

yes, what are the target/goal metrics?  (RFP Section 1.2) 
 

Response: No, removal of any customizations is considered on a case-by-
case basis. 
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11. How many Partners will be responding to this RFP? Have you worked with any of 
these vendors in the past? If so, what is your current relationship with them?  (RFP 
Section 1.1) 

 
Response: At this juncture, we do not know how many firms will be 
responding to this RFP, or if any vendors will propose who have worked with 
SFS in current or in past projects. 

 
 
12. Is there a target budget number for PeopleSoft projects?  Can you please share any 

IT/PeopleSoft budget information? Annually? Project by Project? $250,000 - 
$500,000?  $500,000 - $1M?  $1M - $2M?  Above $2M?  (RFP Section 3.2) 

 
Response: Projects and the cooresponding budget will vary in size depending 
on the needs of each statement of work.  Projects may vary in size and scope 
from very small to very large. 

 
13. Are you open to reviewing business processes or performing a business process 

analysis or Fit Gap?  (RFP Section 1.2) 
 

Response: All services that may be requested to be performed under the 
resulting contract are outlined in RFP Section 1.2.   

 
14. Can you supply a PeopleSoft Compare Report for PS Financials? If yes, please 

provide for Production Environments.  (RFP Section 1.1) 
 

Response: Depending on the nature and requirements of each project 
undertaken, a review of a PeopleSoft compare report may be performed. 

 
15. Please detail the existing workflows that are used. (RFP Section 1.1) 
 

Response: Depending on the nature and requirements of each project 
undertaken, workflow may be a component of the scope of work. Workflow is 
used in SFS to meet existing requirements. 

 
16. Please describe the general satisfaction levels with existing workflow.  (RFP Section 

1.1) 
 

Response: SFS users have a high level of satisfaction with existing workflow. 
 
17. Is there a desire to add additional workflows?  If so, which ones?  (RFP Section 1.2) 
 

Response: Depending on the nature and requirements of each project 
undertaken, workflow may be a component of the scope of work, including the 
need to add workflows. 

 
18. Is there a desire to explore Mobile technologies?  (RFP Section 1.2) 
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Response: Depending on the nature and requirements of each project 
undertaken, a recommendation for mobile technologies is possible.  

 
19. Our company usually separates Project Management from the Solution Architect 

roles. Is there a reason for combining them for the purpose of the bid? If so, is there 
one role that should be prioritized for the Program [sic] Director/Solution Architect 
role? 

 
Response: Please refer to RFP Section 3.1 (F) for all staffing responsibilities 
and requirements for each role outlined for services to be performed under the 
resulting contract.    

 
20. How long will the Primary Contractor have to respond to a new SOW? Is the issuing 

of an SOW collaborative or will the State issue one before the Primary sees it? 
 

Response: The drafting and issuance of a SOW is a collaborative process, and 
reasonable deadlines for SOW development will be established and is 
dependent upon the project complexities and needs. 

 
 

21. Is it assumed that all work will be onsite? Rates should be inclusive of travel, should 
offsite rates be proposed or only onsite? 

 
Response: Only one flat rate should be proposed for each title as indicated.  
Please refer to Form 1-Cost proposal form for all cost instructions.  Any 
changes or deviations from Form 1 – Cost Proposal Form, may result in the 
submitted proposal being deemed non-responsive. 

 
 
22. Is the State currently using other Cloud-based applications/products?  If so, please 

identify. 
 

Response: SFS is implementing a Oracle cloud-based solution to store a copy 
of our PeopleSoft database as part of our disaster recovery plan.  

 
23. Is the State currently utilizing a Cloud-based infrastructure platform or considering a 

transition to one?  In addition, please specify which platform.  
 

Response: SFS is implementing a cloud-based solution to store a copy of our 
PeopleSoft database as part of our disaster recovery plan. Other cloud-based 
services may be considered under future projects, if warranted.   

 
 

24. Has the State already considered or evaluated any specific cloud-based disaster 
recovery components?  Please specify which components which have been 
evaluated or considered. 

 
Response: SFS is implementing a cloud-based solution to store a copy of our 
PeopleSoft database as part of our disaster recovery plan. 
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25. What other cloud-based functionality is the State currently or will be considering? 
 
Response: Depending on the nature and requirements of each project 
undertaken, a recommendation for cloud-based functionality may be 
considered. 
 
 

26. Is there any restriction to naming two (2) WBE partners?  
 

Response: There is no restriction in the number of M/WBE subcontractors that 
a proposer may name.   However, in order to meet the goals of this RFP, 
vendors must propose 15% MBE and 15% WBE for an overall 30% utilization. 

 
 

27. Form 5.3: MWBE Intent to Participate – The Checklist does not mention this form 
nor does it mention Form 5.4. Per proposal it states to submit these but it is not on 
checklist. Please confirm that we need to fill them and submit? 
 
Response: As part of the Administrative Proposal, firms should submit all 
MWBE forms required as outlined in section 3.3 of the RFP Administrative 
Proposal.  This includes Forms 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, and 5.4.  Form 5.5 should only be 
submitted if applicable. 

 
28. Clarify copies we understand SFS wants Originals on Cost and Administrative 

Forms. On the Technical proposal can we submit one original and 6 copies? It was 
not clear if SFS wants all copies of the Technical to be original.  
 
Response: Yes, you may submit one original Technical proposal and 6 copies 
of that proposal; and indicate whether each document is an “original” or a 
“copy.” 
 

29. Checklist has electronic version of our proposal is that considered the email that 
SFS have requested in the 3.5 Submission of a Complete Three-Part Proposal? 

 
Response:  Yes, the electronic versions of each of proposal that makes up the 
three-part proposal should be sent as attachments via email to 
contracts@sfs.ny.gov.  
 

30. We will have a cover letter who should we address the proposal to, we noticed many 
names for contacts?  

 
Response:  Per RFP Section 3.5 (Submission of a Complete Three-Part 
Proposal), proposals should be sent to Sean Harrington at the following 
address: 

Sean Harrington 
Statewide Financial System 
1220 Washington Avenue 

mailto:contracts@sfs.ny.gov
mailto:contracts@sfs.ny.gov
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Building 5, Floor 3 
Albany, NY 12226-1900 

 
31. Can a firm with significant experience providing a team of PeopleSoft consultants 

that have supported public sector implementations of similar size and scope 
specifically supporting those requirements described in Section 2 and Appendix D, 
subsection a,b,and c, under the overall management of the public sector agency 
meet the minimum qualifications of this procurement?    

 
Response: Firms must demonstrate in their proposal that they meet the 
minimum qualifications identified in Appendix D, including managing public 
sector projects as described in Section 2 of the RFP. 

 
32. If the proposer is a New York State dual certified minority woman owned business, 

can the proposer self-fulfill the 30% MWBE requirement? 
 

Response: If a proposing firm is a NYS dual-certified, MWBE firm, the firm may 
self-fulfill only the MBE or WBE participation goal, not both. 

 
 
33. Are there any incumbent currently working/providing services on this contract? If 

yes, can you please share the details? 
 

Response: Metaformers currently provides Oracle PeopleSoft advisory and 
implementation services to SFS which expires 4/30/2020.  

 
 

34. Will a list of interested MWBE certified subcontractors be provided to potential Prime 
Vendors?  

 
Response: Pursuant to RFP Section 10.1, we have published the MWBE 
certified subcontractors that have submitted their interest to date at 
http://www.sfs.ny.gov/index.php/sfs-procurement.  If additional MWBE 
certified subcontractors submit their requests, SFS will update their site 
accordingly. 

 
 

35. Can companies from Outside of the USA can apply for this?. 
 

Response:  Firms must be authorized to do business in the United States and 
meet the Minimum Firm Qualifications to Propose listed in Section 2 of the 
RFP can submit proposals.  Furthermore, all vendors must comply with all 
Federal, State, and Local laws including those that relate to work outside the 
Continental United States (CONUS).  
 

36.  Would we need to come over there for meetings? 
 

http://www.sfs.ny.gov/index.php/sfs-procurement
http://www.sfs.ny.gov/index.php/sfs-procurement
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Response: SFS requires the work under this contract to be performed on-site.  
Occasional off-site work may be allowed on an exception basis, but must be 
approved by SFS Executive Leadership. 

 
37.  Can we submit the proposals via email? 
 

Response:  Please refer to and follow the directions in Section 3.5 of the RFP: 
Submission of a Complete Three-Part Proposal.  All hardcopy proposals must 
be received prior to the Proposal Submission Deadline. 

 
38. How will this contract be utilized differently than NYS OSC Contract, RFP17-15 Staff 

Aug?  It looks like both will service the Statewide Financial System.   
 

Response: This procurement is not focused on staff augmentation, rather it is 
intended to procure a firm that can provide a cohesive team of staff working 
under the firm’s proposed Project Director/Solution Architect with relevant 
experience in the best practice use of PeopleSoft Financials in the public 
sector. 
 

 


